ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 4, 2015
3:31 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel, Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Peter M cciche
Senator Bill Stoltze

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Ma Costello, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stednman

COW TTEE CALENDAR

UPDATE ON ENDANGERED SPECI ES ACT COORDI NATI ON BY STATE OF Al aska
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

COW SSI ONER SAM COTTEN

Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded presentation on the Endangered
Speci es Act (ESA).

DAVI D ROGERS, Special Assistant to the Comm ssioner

Coor di nat or, Endangered Speci es Act

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the Endangered Species Act.

BRAD MEYEN, Sr. Assistant Attorney CGeneral

Nat ur al Resources Section
Department of Law (DQL)

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- March 4, 2015



Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered | egal questions related to the ESA
updat e.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31: 07 PM

CHAIR CATHY GESSEL <called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Mcciche, Welechowski and Chair
G essel .

3:31:38 PM
SENATOR STOLTZE joined the comm ttee.

Updat e on the Endangered Species Act Coordination by the State
of Al aska

3:31: 56 PM

CHAIR d ESSEL announced an update of the Endangered Species Act
(ESA) coordination by the State of Alaska. She said the Al aska
Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&S is a pivotal player in
defending the state's rights along with the Departnent of Law
(DAL). She wel comed Commi ssioner-designee Sam Cotten and David
Rogers, Coordi nator of the Endangered Species Act.

COWM SSI ONER SAM COTTEN, Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane
(ADF&5), Juneau, Alaska, said that they would do a short
presentation on the Endangered Species Act starting with a power
poi nt presentation by David Rogers. He said they worked closely
with Brad Meyen, with the Departnent of Law and Mira Ingle,
seni or nenber of the ESA Team from ADF&G He said the departnent
has a specialist in marine mammal s and scientists that pay close
attention to these issues. He said David Rogers is a special
assistant to the commi ssioner who specializes in a variety of
things: ESA, and al phabet soup agencies including the National
Marine Fisheries Service (NWFS). Today they would tal k about the
Endanger ed Speci es Act.

3:35:22 PM

DAVI D ROGERS, Special Assistant, Al aska Departnment of Fish and
Gane (ADF&G, Juneau, Al aska, said he is a |lawer who practiced
actively for 15 or 20 years with a focus on business |aw. He has
done some |obbying representing both industry and the
conservation comunity. He worked for "I don't know how many
| egislative conmmittees” in the early part of his career. This is
his fourth tour of duty in the governnment. He worked for the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 4, 2015



Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and was special counsel to
the Alaska Railroad Transfer Team under the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) in setting up the
Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC). Later, he worked for the
Departnment of Environnental Conservation (DEC) as a program
manager and as the deputy director of the Air and Water Quality
Division. Now he is working with the ADF&G probably his "l ast
hurrah.” He said his famly has owned several businesses over
the years and currently operates a beverage distribution

conpany.

3:37:39 PM

MR. ROGRES started by listing a suite of relevant |aws:
- Endangered Species Act (ESA) of 1973
-Marine Mammual Protection Act of 1972
-Adm ni strative Procedure Act
-National Environnmental Policy Act
- Al aska Endangered Species Act

He said there are a few species |isted under the Al aska
Endangered Species Act that have different standards than the
federal act.

3:38: 18 PM
He expl ai ned the Endangered Species Act (ESA) Section 4, Listing
and critical habitat process, as follows:

The applicable agency has to wuse the best scientific and
cormercial data available (new research not required) to
determ ne whether a species is endangered or threatened because
of any of the followi ng five factors:

1. Present or threatened destruction, nodification, or

curtailment of its habitat or range;

2. Overutilization for commer ci al , recreational,

scientific or educational purposes;

3. Disease or predation;

4. |l nadequacy of existing regulatory nmechani sns;

5. Oher natural or mnnmade factors affecting its

conti nued exi stence.

3:39: 02 PM

He explained that the difference between endangered and
threatened is that an endangered species is in danger of
extinction throughout all of a significant portion of its range.
Threatened species is likely to become an endangered species
within the foreseeable future

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 4, 2015



CHAI R G ESSEL asked if "endangered" has a tinefrane.

3:41: 02 PM

MR. ROGERS responded that he would focus on that in a little
bit. He added that listing isn't limted to just a species; it
can include subspecies and "distinct population segnents (DPS),"
the Steller Sea as an exanple. The eastern DPS was initially
listed as threatened and now it's delisted. On the other hand

the western DPS is still listed as endanger ed.

What happens after being listed? M. Rogers explained that if
the project has a federal nexus - a permt or federal funding
that nay affect a listed species - then they undertake what is
called a Section 7 consultation process that has nultiple steps.
Section 9 also prohibits the "take" of a listed species. This
means it's illegal to harass, harm pursue, hunt, shoot, wound,
kill, trap, capture or collect, or to attenpt to engage in any
such conduct .

Sone "take" exceptions are:
- Al aska Native subsi stence harvest - marine mamal s
-For threatened species the Service can specify other
exceptions under Section 4(d)

MR. ROCGERS said that federally listed "endangered" species
i ncl ude:

-Steller sea lions - Nat i onal Marine Fisheries

Ser vi ce( NMFS)

- Bowhead whal es ( NVFS)

- Cook I nlet beluga whal e (NVFS)

- Hunpback whal es ( NVFS)

-Qt hers

"Thr eat ened" species include:
-Polar bear - United States Fish and Wldlife
Ser vi ce( USFW5)
-Northern sea otter (USFW5)
-Wod bi son (USFWS)
-Ri nged seal s, a subspecies (NMS)
-Q hers

3:42: 29 PM
Pending reintroductions - a special category for non-
experimental popul ations in which the normal hoops don't apply:
-Wod bison (ADF&G working with the United State Fish
and Wldlife Service (USFWE))

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- March 4, 2015



-Steller's eider (USFW5 is working to reintroduce them
i n Yukon Kuskokw m Delt a)

Under consideration for listing are:
-Pacific wal rus (USFW5)
- Al exander Archi pel ago wol f ( USFW5)
-Seals in Iliama Lake (NWVFS)
- Al aska yel | ow cedar (USFW5)

3:43:39 PM
Del i sted speci es:
-Arctic Peregrine falcon - 1994
-Al eutian Canada goose - 2001
-Eastern DPS, Steller sea lion - 2012
-Central North Pacific stock, hunpback whale (state
petitioned for delisting and is expecting a decision

in April)

3:44:18 PM
Li sting Not Warranted (State research contributed to nost):
- Sout heast Al aska herring
-Pinto abal one
- Ri bbon seal
-43 species of Al aska corals

3:44: 39 PM

Li stings based on climate change argunents:
-Polar bear - projected loss of sea ice within 50
years
-Bearded seal - projected loss of sea ice within 100
years
-Ringed seal - projected loss of sea ice within 100
years

Petitions based on clinmate change argunents:
- Al aska yel | ow cedar
-Seals in Iliama Lake
-Pacific wal rus

3:45: 30 PM
Cli mat e Change Listing Concerns:
-Precautionary listing of ice-dependent species |ike

t he Pol ar bear and ice seals

-Limted evidence of current declines

-Model s predict possible extinction 45 to 100 years in
the future

-Appropriate tinmeframe for nodeling?

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 4, 2015



SENATOR M CClI CHE said thousands of species have becone extinct
in the last thousands of years for many reasons and asked what
kind of credit is given to natural forces that have little to do
wi th human interaction in a species becom ng extinct.

MR. ROGERS said he couldn't answer that, but asked Brad Meyen to
try.

3:47:08 PM

BRAD MEYEN, Sr. Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Natural Resources
Section, Departnent of Law (DOL), Anchorage, Al aska, explained
that the five factors nentioned earlier are |ooked at for
listing of a species and they don't distinguish between a human
caused event and a naturally occurring one. A species can be
listed if it is just froma naturally occurring cause.

COM SSI ONER COTTEN said the reason for the Steller sea lion
drop in population couldn't be determ ned, but clearly the fix
was to restrict fishing.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked the basic process for Ilisting a
speci es.

MR. MEYEN answered the process can be by NWS or USFWS
initiative or a petition filed by anyone. But it mnust be a
docunent that reviews the science and states the reason for the
need to list; this is submtted to the agency. The agency has a
90-day period to review the petition and nake a determ nation
whet her further review is warranted. During the 90-day period
they basically just pull open their files and see what
informati on they have on hand to evaluate the situation and then
deci de whether further investigation is warranted. For exanpl e,
the National Mrine Fisheries Service (NWMS) found enough
information to warrant further review of the ringed seal and the
i npacts of climte change on them

He explained that with a positive 90-day finding, there is
anot her 12-nmonth review period during which the public and the
state can submit coments on what the agency should be | ooking
at in the status of that species. At the end of that 12-nonth
period, the federal agency nmust make a finding whether there is

sufficient information to warrant listing the species and then
publish a proposed rule, or nmake a finding that listing is not
warranted at this tinme, or mke a finding that listing is

warranted but there are other species that need nore attention
at this tine and the agency doesn't have tine to get to it. For

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 4, 2015



that reason, the species is then put on a candi date species |ist
and |l ooked at in a future tine period. If the decision is to go
ahead and list the species, there is another 12-nonth period in
which the public and state can coment. Litigation cannot be
filed to stop the efforts at this tinme, because the rule is not
final. The rules nust becone final under the formal rule-naking
process of the Admnistrative Procedure Act of the United
St at es. At such time as the rule is final, though, and the
decision is made to list the species, a six-year period is
started when litigation can be filed.

3:55: 26 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the standard of review for courts. Is
it an abuse of discretion standard or a hi gher standard?

MR. MEYEN answered that the abuse of discretion standard is
used. The admnistrative record nust support the decision and
the agency nmust be able to connect the dots through the
information that they reviewed and the decision they reached.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked the court's view of challenges to ESA
listings. Are they often overturned or not?

MR. MEYEN answered that challenges of an actual listing are an
uphill battle, because the agencies get deference in tw ways

they are accorded deference from the courts if there is sone
sort of an interpretation of the ESA that they have been filled
in through pronulgation of regulation, and the second is in
eval uation of the science. But, having said that, he added that
the state had been a party to two clinmate change cases now where
the judge vacated the decision at the district court |evel and
sent it back to the agency for further consideration.

SENATOR COCGHI LL said that precautionary listings are based on
nodel s that are speculative in many ways, because they | ook out
20 or 100 years, and even nodels they |ook back on show that
they haven't predicted very well. So, when it goes to a court,
does the court get to review the information or is it considered
sci ence?

MR. MEYEN replied that the court gets to review the information
that the agency has relied upon, but in the bearded seal case
the federal agency made a real cursory review. The nodel made an
assunption that the sea ice would no longer be there in 100
years to support their life strategies and on that basis alone
found that the species should be listed as threatened. The dots
wer e not connected about how that species would be inpacted.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- March 4, 2015



CHAIR G ESSEL, referencing slide 3, asked if ESA, Section 4,
listing and critical habitat processes, is using the "best
scientific and comercial data avail able" because it also says
(new research not required). Is that true that nothing new needs
to be done in terns of science?

MR. MEYEN answered that was correct. But having said that, where
the ADF&G anticipates potential listings it has proactively put
plans into the works so that there is nore, fresh and better
science for the agency to look at. O herwise the decision wll
be made on stal e and i nadequate information.

4:01: 06 PM

CHAI R G ESSEL asked how that anticipatory work and DOL budget
cuts would affect the state's effectiveness in pushing back on
t hese designati ons.

MR. MEYEN answered that he wasn't prepared to address proposed
budget constraints, but he had personally been working these
topics and issues for the past seven years, and based upon what
litigation he has now and what he anticipates in the near
future, the Departnment of Law and ADF&G should be able to handl e
t hat .

CHAI R G ESSEL asked if ADF&G continues to have the robust staff
focus on devel oping this proactive science.

COM SSIONER COTTEN replied that it is hard to say at the
nonent, because they don't know what the final budget will |ook
like, but so far it looks like they will be able to continue
t hei r work.

MR. ROCGERS added that they are serious about this and wll do
what they have to do within their powers to continue a robust
effort on these issues.

4:03: 26 PM
SENATOR M CClI CHE asked if the state has a legal leg to stand on
in cases like the beluga whale and limting future adverse

human-rel ated activities in the critical habitat area that |ed
tothe listing in the first place.

MR. MEYEN answered that the twi st Al aska has that other states
don't is that it has nmarine animals, which are also governed
under the Marine Mammal Protection Act, and are the sane nmanmmal s
that have been petitioned to be listed under ESA. So, it has

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 4, 2015



| ayers of protection and differences in what is considered a
take. In this instance it goes back two stages. The Cook Inlet
Bel uga whal e subsi stence harvest inpacts were known in 1999 when
the first attenpts were nmade to list the species. At that tine
it was taken into account and attenpts were nmade to |ist under
both the state and federal acts, and both were denied. Later in
2008, the federal agency |ooked at the situation again and saw
no inprovement in the population |level and decided to list the
species. In that instance, the State of Alaska challenged the
listing indicating that the inpact was known when it occurred

The court gave deference to the agency and upheld its decision
because that is where the popul ati on was.

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked there any potential for adjusting for
subsi stence harvests prior to a species beconing threatened or
endanger ed.

MR. MEYEN answered that it was hard to guess and he wasn't aware
of another situation with those sorts of risks.

4:08:22 PM

MR. ROGERS next discussed listing concerns and how recovery
objectives are developed for species that are at currently
healthy | evels but projected to decline and how critical habitat
should be designated if the species ranges is projected to
change. He explained that the ESA provides few additional
protections from the existing Mrine Manmal Protection Act
protections. So, the ultimate question to ponder is whether a
listing based on climate change warrants a different approach.
Anot her issue is expansion of critical habitat designations:
187,000 square mles for the Pol ar bear.

4:09: 23 PM
SENATOR STOLTZE asked the departnent's position on climte
change, if it has a position.

COWMM SSI ONER COTTEN answered that he wasn't prepared to describe
the administration's positon on climte change at this time, but
there are a lot of climate changes in the Arctic. They are nore
specifically focusing on sone of the listings like this that use
climate change as a nexus and are in the process of chall enging
t hose deci sions based on the 100-year hori zon.

MR. ROCGERS added that regardless of the cause, sonmething is

going on and it has to be taken into account in thinking about
how t o address these issues.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 4, 2015



SENATOR STOLTZE asked the question of M. Myen.

MR. MEYEN said he didn't have a response to the policy, but
climate change nodeling in the litigation is really a record-
based review.

4:12:45 PM

MR. ROCGERS said the 187,000 square mles listing for Polar bears
was vacated and the proposed ringed seal critical habitat of
350,000 square mles is in the cooment stage and due March 31.

CHAI R G ESSEL asked if he had a preview

MR. ROGERS answered that Mira Engel was doing the heavy lifting
on that, but they were just in the beginning stage of getting
comment s t oget her

4:13:56 PM

He said the boundaries for the discussion of critical habitat
are ESA, Section 3, which says that critical habitat neans the
specific areas within the occupied area where biological and
physical features essential to the conservation of the species
are found. Section 5 also adds that critical habitats include
entire the geographical area, which can be occupied by the
species. One new requirenent is that there has to be an economc
anal ysis associated with critical habitat designations and the
secretary has discretion to exclude areas based on the economc
anal ysi s.

CHAIR G ESSEL remarked that it says critical habitat shall not
include the entire geographical area and in |looking at the
ringed seal, it appears that it 1is including the entire
geographical area. The hunpback whale was filed based on
distinct population segnents and she asked if that is an
opportunity here to limt the area that would be considered
critical habitat.

MR. ROGERS answered that it is an opportunity to coment, but
t hey haven't devel oped the coments. They will do their best to
i nfluence the final decision.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked if he has any new science on the popul ations

in geographic areas that would refute this very |arge possible
critical habitat designation

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- March 4, 2015



MR. MEYEN responded that it is known that the ringed seals
nunber in the mllions, so one of the argunments is that the
whol e area isn't needed for sustainability of the species.

4:18:16 PM
SENATOR STOLTZE asked him to describe any strategy or
phi | osophi cal changes t hat came W th t he change of

adm ni strations.

COW SSI ONER COTTEN answered that the administration has not
changed direction or philosophy. They are still pursuing sone of
the same issues the previous adm nistration was pursuing. They
are evaluating successes and |ack thereof; they want to |earn
from m stakes and build on the areas of success. They are stil
interested in the deficiencies in the U S. governnent proposal.

SENATOR STOLTZE said during the canpaign there was a |ot of
criticism about excessive and unproductive |awsuits and asked if
this admnistration has the same conmtnment to litigation to
aggressi ve pursue things through the court.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN answered that for the ones they are focusing
on today the conmtnent is as strong, but the Departnent of Law
could speak nore on the litigation aspect. If litigation hasn't
been successful, they nmay decide they can't afford some of those
things. But if they have been successful, they want to recognize
t hat .

4:22:02 PM

MR. ROGERS added that he is a lawer and litigation is an
i nportant tool; noney changes the equation a bit, but no one is
afraid to use it. Talking has value, but it doesn't always work
Wen they sit dow and nmake sonme final deci sions and
Comm ssioner Cotten signs a docunent, a recomendation, an
opinion, that will be the real test of how they feel and the
best way to judge case by case how they are |looking at these
t hi ngs.

SENATOR STOLTZE said the previous admnistration always had
attorney generals in those ESA di scussi ons.

4:24:46 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI encouraged them to | ook carefully at these
cases and to go forward on the cases they think they can win. He
advised that the abuse of discretion standard is the easiest
standard for a federal agency to win wth.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- March 4, 2015



4:25: 24 PM
MR. ROGERS agreed that it is a tough argunent.

MR. MEYEN responded that it is a difficult standard, but they
have | earned that under ESA, the one advantage the state has is
Section (4)(i) that requires the federal governnent to respond
specifically to state comments on whether to list a species or
not, whether to designate critical habitat or not, and to date
that has been the strong armin this litigation when they fail
to do it. The state has been a very inportant player in
particularly the challenge of the designation of critical
habitat for the Polar bear and listing of the bearded seals. In
both cases the court recognized that obligation to respond to
the state and al so recognized the failure of it.

SENATOR M CCI CHE said he didn't know if the 350,000 square-mle
proposed listing nakes the Q@uinness Book of Critical Habitat
Records or not, but it seens like a large swath of real estate
especially with 1 mllion seals in existence. It seens |like they
are at least interested in violating the ESA, Section 5. Sone
listings alnobst seem to be project specific and asked what
actually begins the process. Could it be an NGO that just sinply
opposes Arctic exploration?

4:28: 32 PM
MR. MEYEN answered that NGOs submit a petition wth the
bi ol ogi cal reasons they want to see the species listed. That

triggers the agency's review. If there has been no petition, the
agency itself can have an informal discussion and decide to
begin its own review of whether or not to |ist a species.

SENATOR M CCICHE asked if he thought there was at |east the
potential for abuse of the ESA on a project-specific basis.

MR. MEYEN replied that it was hard to address a hypothetica
guesti on.

MR. ROCGERS noved on to the issue of state strategy, the first
one being political and building partnerships wth various
organi zations. The prior admnistration was involved and the new
one is, too. In fact, the director and others are going to the
Association of Fish and WIldlife Agency gathering in Qmaha,
Nebraska, and to the extent they can pay for the travel, they
intend to actively participate in these things. That includes
the State/Federal ESA Task Force. Bringing concerns to Congress
and others could be an effective option.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- March 4, 2015



COWM SSI ONER COTTEN added that they want to find other states
that participate in these associations that have simlar v that
the nore states canpaigning for changes to federal l|law, the nore
Iikely the chances of success are.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked if he had identified any specific part of
the ESA that could be changed.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN answered that he didn't have anything in
particular with ESA, but had sone authority issues with AN LCA

4:33: 09 PM

MR. MEYEN replied that the previous adnmi nistration had | ooked at
sone areas of the ESA, but he hadn't had tine to speak to the
comi ssi oner about them One was generally felt throughout all
the state wildlife agencies and that is the deference given to
science and el evating that deference to the state's science.

SENATOR STOLTZE said in the past, the DOL took the |ead and
others supplenented their case and asked if there had been a
shifting of the | ead departnent.

COW SSIONER  COTTEN answered that the actual decision to
litigate lies with DOL. Mst recently, the ADF&G s role is as a
resource to the DOL for Endangered Species Act listings. The
ADF&G has taken sone |eadership role in working other states on
specific issues, nobst recently the National Park Service and
Fish and WIldlife Service preserve lands in Al aska and sone
Al aska hunting regul ati ons.

SENATOR COGHI LL suggested using three strategies. The first was
to talk to the western states, because they have such big
federal land tracts, talk to the coastal states, as well: the
@Qul f Coast, Pacific Coast and the East Coast. They have simlar
i ssues and have been very successful in getting some of their
OCS i ssues navi gated through the ESA

Secondly, the ESA specifically has broadened its scope by
defining |anguage through regulation and sonme court cases have
broadened that even nore. So, if they are going to talk to
Congress about specific |anguage, the science just has to be
better defined.

4:40: 04 PM

CHAIR G ESSEL agreed that nore good science is needed and ADF&G
has the good biologists to do it. She said the climte change
i ssue had never been tested relating to the Polar bear; theories

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- March 4, 2015



were put out about ice nelting, but popul ations of Polar bears
haven't changed. She urged to first get the science and then
engage the federal agencies, with a lawsuit if necessary.

4:40: 36 PM

MR. ROGERS went to slide 22 and said it's the state's right to
conduct research and develop conservation acts that are
sonetines |ess expensive and easier to develop than ESA
requi renents. So, that is a focus and the primary goal of the
state's wildlife action plan, but funding is a constraint. A |ot
of the noney conmes from federal sources with state matches. He
believes in science as the basis for these decisions and he wll
be focusing on that.

CHAIR GQESSEL said the Alaska Arctic Policy Conm ssion
recogni zed the robust work being done at the University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) in Arctic issues. She asked if the
department collaborates with them or if there are "silos" of
research bei ng done.

MR. ROGERS replied that sonme collaborati on goes on today, but he
has al so begun conversations with Chancellor Rogers and others
to talk about the possibility of additional collaboration with
the university. It is a priority.

4:43: 27 PM

MR. ROGERS explained that they created a process called "Aqua"
that got everyone doing research around one table to prioritize
research needs and figure out who was going to do what. It's not
a perfect solution, but he would follow up. He doesn't Iike
si | os.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked if there is actually an Al exander
Ar chi pel ago wol f subspeci es.

MR. ROGERS said that question is being debated.

COMM SSI ONER COTTEN said it had been explained to him that a
petitioner, in hopes of success on getting sonething listed, is
better off taking on a small chunk of a population. For
i nstance, sone people think Prince of Wiles Island is a
di stinction subspecies of grey wolf, because it mght be easier
to get a listing under those circunstances. However, Kim Titus,
their chief wldlife scientist, is an expert on wolves and he
suggests that it is one popul ati on of Southeast wolf.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- March 4, 2015



CHAIR G ESSEL asked if a substantial scientific basis for that
assertion is being devel oped.

COWMM SSI ONER COTTEN answered yes. He added that he had actually
had conversations wth USFW5 on this subject and they haven't
announced a concl usi on ot herw se yet.

4:45: 36 PM
CHAIR G ESSEL asked what the inplications are if this wolf is
t hought to be a distinct subspecies.

COM SSIONER COTTEN replied that they would go through the
process that M. Rogers described earlier. There would be a
petition, and under Section 7 consultation they would end up
with a biological opinion, and if there was old growth tinber on
federal land on Prince of Wales Island, then there woul d perhaps
be restrictions on renoving old growh tinber if they are
listed.

CHAIR G ESSEL wanted to know how much further this could be
expanded and asked if this is a subspecies, are grey wolves in
gener al in Al aska threatened, which would inplicate the
i nt ensi ve managenent policy of managing our wildlife?

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN said there has been no suggestion that grey
wol ves are endangered or threatened in general in Al aska.

4:47:40 PM

MR. ROGERS added that in terns of the real world consequences of
a listing, it is the consultation process that often leads to
mtigation neasures and del ays.

4:48: 01 PM

MR. ROCERS said another strategy is to fully participate in
various ways through data and information, comrents, recovery
planning (the departnment is deeply involved in Polar bear
recovery planning), and submitting delisting petitions.

He said like the previous adm nistrations, they are neeting at
high levels to discuss some of the policy inplications to help
t hem understand each other. This applies not only to ESA, but
ANI LCA i ssues.

4:49: 45 PM

MR. ROGERS said the standard he uses is if the science doesn't
support a listing or they didn't do it right, they will take a

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 4, 2015



real hard |ook. They also intervene in court cases where the
state has interest.

MR. MEYEN commented that if the NWFS or the USFWS nakes a
decision and their decision is challenged by other groups or
interests the state is supportive. That has been done on several
occasi ons.

4:50: 48 PM

MR. ROGERS went to current litigation:

-Polar bear critical habitat designation was struck down and
remanded to the USFW5. The USFW5 has appeal ed.

-Bearded seal, a threatened Ilisting, was struck down and
remanded and NMFS has appeal ed that one.

MR. ROCGERS said the state had a successful challenge in district
court on the bearded seal I|isting, because of a lack of
information and data connecting the dots between the projected
| oss of sea ice and habitat needs. There is a very l|large current
popul ation of 155,000 aninmals with no indication of current
decline. That was renmanded to NMFS for additional work and it is
al so under appeal .

4:52: 57 PM

CHAI R 3 ESSEL paused him to say she was glad the departnent was
engaged in that and along with a private organization, the
Resource Devel opnent Council (RDC). Legislators comrent on these
things as well, but they look at the departnment to be the "Big
@un" and agai n she urged robust action.

MR. ROGERS quot ed Judge Beistline who sumred up the issue:

An unknown, unquantifiable population reduction, which
is not expected to occur until nearly 100 years in the
future is too renote and speculative to support a
listing as threatened. If the court were to hold
ot herwi se, such a holding could logically render every
species in the Arctic and sub-Arctic areas potentially
t hr eat ened.

He said simlar litigation is currently being considering on
ri nged seal s.

4:53:46 PM
SENATOR STOLTZE said the North Slope Borough has a noted
research departnent for gane and fish and asked if he had worked
wi th them

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- March 4, 2015



COWM SSI ONER COTTEN answered they haven't, yet, but they are
starting to look for research partners for a |lot of other
reasons. The North Sl ope Borough is another |ogical partner that
has already filed a suit on the ringed seal (as has Al aska Gl
and Gas Associ ation (AOCGA)) .

4:55:12 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if industry actively follows these
cases.

COWMM SSI ONER COTTEN replied that AOCGA has filed suit already on
the ringed seals and that is an exanple of action.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNEKI said the only reason he asked is wth
declining budgets it wll be hard to have robust research,
analysis and litigation and if industry is picking that up, it's
a good t hing.

SENATOR COGHILL said the National Environnmental Policy Act
(NEPA) has provided a reason to do a lot of science in Al aska
some of which has brought significant benefit to the state's
fisheries. Sonme suits are defensive in order for themto be able
to finish the science and the public conment on NEPA.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked if they are commenting on the gill nets on
t he Kenai and Kasilof Rivers.

COMM SSI ONER COTTEN replied that the opportunity to file for a

request for reconsideration is still open, but you can't just
send in sonme little note; it is quite an extensive docunent. It
is being worked on internally and will be ready to submt if it

IS necessary.

MR. ROGERS said he woul d keep the chair posted.

CHAI R G ESSEL t hanked the presenters.

4:59:14 PM

Finding no further business to cone before the cormmittee, Chair

G essel adjourned the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee
meeting at 5:00 p.m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- March 4, 2015



